
 
 

REVISED AGENDA 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 3, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 RESIDENCE PRIDE AWARDS 

 Sunset Cleaners/Jason Minnich  111 S. Downing Street 
 Betty Giesseman    205 Maryville Lane 
 Thomas Kohlhorst    924 Caldwell Street 
 Valerie Hinkle    208 N. Roosevelt Avenue 
 Greg & Lori Miller    826 W. High Street 

  
AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  

 
a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Approval of the minutes from the July 9, 2010 Piqua City Commission Worksession and the 
July 20, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  

   
BB..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a.  ORD. NO. 24-10 (1st Reading) 
     An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of 
 Riverside Drive Street reconstruction 
 
b. RES. NO. R-90-10 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Labor Contract with the Fraternal  
 Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. 

 
c. RES. NO. R-91-10 

A Resolution accepting the resignation of Richard K. Ghere as a member of the Community  
Diversity Committee 

 
CC..  OOTTHHEERR  

  
a. Power Systems Update- Mr. Ed Krieger 
b. Monthly Reports – June 2010 

 
DD..    AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  TTOO  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSEESSSSIIOONN  

a. To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline or compensation of the 
City Manager or City Clerk 

     
EE.   ADJOURNMENT 



A. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
                    August 3, 2010 
 

         
 Minutes – Approval of the minutes from the July 9, 2010 Piqua 
City Commission Work Session and the July 20, 2010 Regular 
City Commission Meeting 



  MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

July 9, 2010 
10:00 A.M. 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
Piqua City Commission met in a Special Work Session in the Commission Chambers in 
the Municipal Government Complex, 201 W. Water Street.  Mayor Fess called the 
meeting to order at 10:00 A.M.  Also present were Commissioners Wilson, Martin, and 
Terry. Absent: Vogt.  Also in attendance: City Manager Fred Enderle, Law Director Stacy 
Wall, Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple, Human Resource Director Elaine Barton, 
Utilities Supervisor Robin Hungerford, Lisa Cavender Income Tax, Stacy McClain of 
Finance, Purchasing Director Beverly Yount, Health & Sanitation Director Amy Welker, 
and Information Technology Director Dean Burch. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting is the review of a new computer system. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to excuse 
Commissioner Vogt from the Piqua City Commission Work Session July 9, 2010. Voice 
vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay; None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple read the names of the IT Team members who 
participated in putting together the information and worked to find the best possible 
system, and they include: Barry Strock-Consultant, Dean Burch-Information Technology, 
Robin Hungerford-Utility Billing, Lisa Cavender-Income Tax/Finance, Bev Yount-
Purchasing, Ben Turner-Information Technology, Mike Fishbach-Finance, Chris Gerlach-
Information Technology, and Stacy McClain-Finance.  Ms. Holtzapple gave an extensive 
very information power-point presentation on the proposed computer system with the 
help of several department heads explaining how the new system would benefit their 
individual department. (See enclosed copy of presentation)  Department Heads 
participating in the presentation included: Lisa Cavender of the Finance Department, 
Elaine Barton of the Human Resource Department, Robin Hungerford of the Utilities 
Department, and Amy Welker of the Health and Sanitation Department.   All shared 
information on the benefits of the new computer system in their daily process of 
servicing the citizens of Piqua in a more efficient and cost saving way. 
 
Ms. Holtzapple and IT Director Dean Burch explained the disaster recovery set up noting 
the off-site areas for storage of the information, the implementation schedule, the 
estimated training costs, and the funding of the new system. 
 
City Manager Enderle explained the Fund Balance, and how the funds will be borrowed 
internally to save money. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Ms. Holtzapple and the department heads for their very informative 
presentation, stating they did an outstanding job on putting together the presentation.  
Mayor Fess stated the City of Piqua is currently lagging behind in technology, and 
appreciates all the work they have done.  
 
 



There was a lengthy discussion of the cost of the computer system, other various 
venders and types of computer systems that responded to the RFP’s, the 
implementation schedule, the type of updates and the schedule they would be received, 
the importance of support, off-site backup locations, the possibility of going paperless, 
how the system would allow the city to run in real-time when working on reports or 
obtaining information, the possibility of applying for various permits and paying for them 
on line, obtaining utility billing information, and general overall information. 
 
The Commissioners asked for a comparison of the costs between the software 
companies to be able to make a clear decision on why they chose to proceed with the 
Springbrook System over the others that were listed. 
 
Mayor Fess asked if all Commissioners present were in agreement with going forward 
with the purchase of the Springbrook Computer System, with the information requested 
provided.  All Commissioners present were in agreement to proceed if the information 
requested is provided. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to adjourn from the 
Piqua City Commission Work Session at 12:00 PM. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, 
Hudson and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

     ______________________________ 
                  LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
    
 
 



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday July 20, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Proclamation     Council on Rural Services  
  Accepting Ms. Shirley Hathaway 

 
Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to Ms. Hathaway. Ms. Hathaway thanked the 
Mayor and spoke of several of the programs they offer.  

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the July 1, 2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session, and the July 6, 
2010 Regular City Commission Meeting. 

 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that the minutes of the July 1, 
2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session, and the Regular City Commission Meeting of July 6, 2010 
be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Terry, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
ORD. NO. 22-10 (3rd Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to change the street name of portions of Bridge Street and Statler Road 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the third reading for the name change of portions of Bridge Street 
and Statler Road.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 22-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Ordinance No. 22-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 22-10 adopted. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 23-10 (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance to vacate a portion of public right of way known as River Street 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the first reading of Ordinance No. 23-10 and is a request to vacate 
a portion of public right that only provides access to the levy and the City water tower.  The Planning 
Commission has recommended approval of Ordinance No. 23-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that the rule requiring Ordinance 
No. 23-10 be read fully and distinctly on three separate days be suspended. Roll call, Aye: Fess, 
Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 



 2

 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Ordinance No. 23-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin.  Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 23-10 adopted. 
 
 
RES. NO. R-87-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to Francis Office Supply Inc. for various office products 
 
City Manager Enderle stated we currently use an annual blanket purchase order with Francis Office 
Supply, and have been very pleased with their pricing and customer service. This would increase the 
amount approved from $24,000 to $50,000 for the 2010 budget year. 
 
Commissioner Martin inquired if this was something that was missed when putting together the 2010 
budget.  Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple explained the reason for the change at this time. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-87-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-87-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Wilson, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-87-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-88-10 
 
A Resolution awarding a contract to Springbrook Software, Inc, in an amount not to exceed $920,000 
for a new integrated Municipal Information Software System including data conversion, training, 
implementation and annual maintenance fees 
 
City Manager Enderle asked Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple to explain the project 
background with the costs and benefits outlined. 
 
 Mr. Enderle stated Barry Strock of Strock & Associates; the consultant on the project was present, 
and Karen Dyster a representative from Springbrook Software Inc. to answer any questions. 
 
Mayor Fess stated an article was published in the Piqua Daily Call recently that produced a number of 
comments pro and con asking the reason the city is considering purchasing the computer system 
when we are facing such economical challenges.  
 
Mayor Fess asked that comments and questions be held until Ms. Holtzapple completed her 
presentation. 
 
Finance Director Cynthia Holtzapple gave a very in depth comprehensive in depth presentation on the 
need for and the advantages to the city of the new computer system software. (See enclosed 
presentation) Ms. Holtzapple stated the city has been extensively researching the purchase of the 
updated software for the last two years.  The AS400 System 36 dates back to 1995, with some of the 
components dating as far back as 1985.  The city has been searching for a “utility billing and 
governmental financial accounting system,” to better meet the needs of the city.  The Springbrook 
Software will offer the city a complete suite of financial and accounting systems, stated Ms. 
Holtzapple.   
 
Features will include the ability to obtain information, including detailed reporting in real-time, increase 
productivity of current personnel, reduce costs and provide citizens the opportunity to go on line to pay 
their utility bills and manage their utility accounts.  The new system will allow customers to receive 
utility bills via e-mail, be able to request and pay for certain licenses online, and would allow for better 
code enforcement within the city. 



 3

 
Mayor Fess thanked Ms. Holtzapple for her in depth report, and the IT Department for their help in 
putting together the RFP’s and the presentation of the plan.  It was also noted the City Commissioners 
were given in depth information in a two-hour Work Session held previously on the need for the new 
computer system at this time. 
 
Commissioner Martin asked numerous questions that were answered by Mr. Strock and IT Director 
Dean Burch concerning the advantages and programs that were available with the Springbrook 
Software. Commissioner Martin stated he works daily on an AS400 Computer System at his place of 
employment, and is somewhat familiar with how it works. 
 
Mr. Strock stated the city’s IT Department has done a very good job on keeping the current system up 
and running, but they have stretched the current system as much as it possibly can be stretched by 
patching and adding additional software programs whenever possible.  “You can’t fix it anymore, you 
have pushed it as hard as you could”, said Mr. Strock 
 
A lengthy discussion ensued by all of the Commissioners on the use of the Springbrook Computer 
System versus purchasing another AS-400 computer system. Ms. Holtzapple explained the many 
reasons for the purchase of the Springbrook System.  Mayor Fess asked if Piqua would be the first 
Community in Ohio to use the Springbrook System. Mr. Strock stated yes, Piqua would be the first 
community in Ohio to use the Springbrook System.  Mayor Fess further stated Mr. Strock is the 
consultant on the project, and does not endorse or work for any software company. 
 
Commissioner Vogt stated he is still concerned about how the city will be paying for the system, and 
asked what the guidelines are for borrowing internally.  Ms Holtzapple explained the guidelines for 
borrowing the money internally. 
 
Commissioner Wilson asked a question regarding the annual maintenance costs.  Ms. Holtzapple 
explained.  Commissioner Wilson stated it would be helpful to have a comparison between the AS400 
and the new system. Dean Burch explained the annual maintenance costs.  Commissioner Wilson 
asked Mr. Strock if he thought the current system would last ten years. Mr. Strock stated no way. 
 
Commissioner Terry thanked all who worked on the project, and stated her concern was if the City 
could afford the new system at this time.  Ms. Holtzapple said the answer is yes; the city can afford to 
make the yearly expenditure of $41,593 that would be required to purchase the new system.    
 
Law Director Stacy Wall stated the current computer system is not able to keep up with the growing 
needs of the city. For example, the city passed an Ordinance recently to collect a stormwater fee but is 
unable to bill it with the current computer system without having to write a new program.  This is how 
the current system is failing us now, and why the new system would be such an asset to the city. 
 
The implementation will begin immediately starting with the finance modules being installed between 
now and December, and in 2011 the Human Resources/Payroll module and the Utility Billing modules 
will be installed, said Ms. Holtzapple. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Joe Francis, Parkway, inquired as to the upfront costs of the computer system, and asked how the city 
planned to take money from the Street Department when the Street Department is broke.  City 
Manager Enderle explained. 
 
Valerie Mullikin, Caldwell, thanked Ms. Holtzapple for her outstanding presentation on the computer 
system. Ms. Mulligan voiced her concern about the city possibly going to an all automated system in 
the future, and asked about a backup system.  IT Director Dean Burch explained. 
 
Deron Yingst, Adams Street, voiced his opinion on the purchase of the computer system, stating he 
was against it at first, but now believes it is a great system. 
 



 4

Joe Goetz, Wilshire Drive came forward to voice his opinion and concern on the purchase of the 
computer software system.  Mr. Goetz feels it is a bad time to be spending money, and would like to 
see the city to wait two-three years if possible before going forward with such an expensive purchase. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin to table Resolution No. R-87-10 until August to take the time to digest 
all the information presented.  The motion died for a lack of a second. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-88-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: Martin.  Motion carried on a 4-1 vote.  
Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-88-10 adopted on a 4-1 vote. 
 
RES. NO. R-89-10 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Debra Osborne as a member of the Community Diversity 
Committee 
 
City Manager Enderle stated with the resignation of Ms. Osborne there will be a seat open on the 
Diversity Committee for her unexpired term. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-89-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-89-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-89-10 adopted. 
 
OTHER 
 
Public Comment 
 
Bob Bloom, Union Shelby Road, a representative of the Piqua Firefighter’s Local 252 came forward 
and read a prepared statement with answers to the questions that were asked at the July 6, 2010 City 
Commission Meeting.  
 
Mayor Fess responded to the statements and concerns that Mr. Bloom presented. 
 
Mr. Bloom stated he would like to make it clear that it was stated a firefighter makes $100,000 a year.  
That is not correct; the $100,000 figure is the total cost of a firefighter to the city, not the salary of a 
firefighter. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated there are several other departments that are on call such as 
Power/Distribution, and a lot of people get called in for many reasons at all hours, including 
Department Heads at times. 
 
Roy Howard, Spiker Road, came forward and asked if the city is planning to raise city fees with the 
purchase of the new computer system. 
 
Joe Goetz, Wilshire Drive, came forward and voiced his opinion on the purchase of the new computer 
system.  Mr. Goetz also inquired about a report he requested on the Piqua Plaza. 
 
Valerie Mullikin, Caldwell, inquired about some of the city streets being torn up for such a long period 
time, and asked the expected time frame for the repairs to be completed. City Engineer Amy Havenar 
explained. 
 
Luke Bolin, Ann Street voiced his concern over an alley by his home badly in need of repairs.  City 
Manager Enderle explained the alley repair schedule, and stated he would look into it. 
 



 5

City Commission Comments 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he would like to see more information published in the Piqua Daily Call if 
possible on various city projects and topics to keep the citizens informed on what the city is doing. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Shirley Hathaway and The Council on Rural Services on the 
wonderful job they are doing, stating they are a real gem for the city. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he was given a tour of the Pump House in Shawnee, and was able to see 
first hand all of the grass and debris building up in the sewer lines.  Commissioner Martin reminded 
citizens to blow their grass back into their yards, and not into the street where it gets washed down the 
sewers. 
 
Commissioner Vogt, voiced his opinion on the purchase of computer system, and the process the city 
went through to make a decision on the purchase the computer system.  Commissioner Vogt also 
reminded and invited citizens to attend the Car Show being held at Fountain Park on Saturday, July 
31, from 11:00 A.M. – 5:30 P.M. and concluding with a performance by the Van Dells at 7:00 P.M. in 
the Hance Pavilion. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the city received the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund (COAF) grant from the 
State of Ohio in the amount of $199,900 for the Phase II Environmental Study at the old hospital site. 
The city also received Stimulus dollars from ODOT to be used for street repairs in the amount of  
$274,952 with the city putting in 10% matching funds.  The funds are earmarked for redoing 
Washington Avenue from Park Avenue to St. Rt. 66. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn into Executive Session 
at 11:00 P.M. P.M.  Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson. Vogt, Martin and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously to adjourn into Executive Session. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn from Executive Session 
at 12:00 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 12:00 A.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
No.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
          _____________________________ 

                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



B.    NEW BUSINESS 
          AUGUST 3, 2010 
 

 Ord. No. 24-10 (1st Reading) 
 Res. No. R-90-10 
 Res. No. R-91-10 



ORDINANCE NO.  24-10  
 

  
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING TO PROCEED WITH 
AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 
IMPROVEMENT OF RIVERSIDE DRIVE STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Commission did duly adopt Resolution No. R-52-09 on the 15th 
day of June, 2009 declaring therein the necessity of the proposed improvement 
hereinafter described; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution, estimated assessments with respect to 
said improvement were duly prepared and placed on file in the office of the Clerk of this 
Commission; and 
  
 WHEREAS, no objections to said estimated assessments having been filed, the 
Board of Revision of Assessments heard and determined the equalization of the 
assessment report; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the report of the Board of Revision as reviewed, has been submitted 
to this Commission and attached hereto; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The revised assessment report of the Board of Revision of 
Assessments is hereby approved and the assessments as recommended in said report 
are hereby approved and shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of this Commission; 

 
SEC. 2: It is hereby determined to proceed with the improvement of 

Riverside Drive Street Reconstruction Project in accordance with the provisions of said 
Resolution No. R-52-09 and in accordance with the plans, profiles, specifications and the 
estimate of cost for said improvement heretofore approved and filed in the office of Clerk 
of this Commission; 

 
 SEC. 3: The final assessments of the cost of said improvement heretofore 
prepared and filed in the office of said clerk (and as equalized by the Board of Revision 
of Assessments hereinabove referred to) be and the same hereby are adopted; 
 
 SEC. 4: It is further determined that the portion of the cost of said 
improvement to be assessed against benefited property shall be assessed in the 
amount, manner and number of installments as provided for in said resolution declaring 
the necessity of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 5: All claims for damages resulting from said improvement that may 
be filed in accordance with law shall be inquired into after completion of said 
improvement; 
 



 SEC. 6: There be and hereby are levied and assessed upon the lots and 
lands bounding and abutting upon said improvement the several amounts reported in 
said assessment report (which assessments are at the rate of $8.95 per front foot of 
curb and gutter removed and installed, $3.60 per square foot of 4” sidewalk removed 
and installed, $50.80 per square yard of 6” driveway with sidewalk removed and 
installed).  Said assessments do not exceed any statutory limitation; 
 
 SEC. 7:  It is hereby determined that the assessments in the revised 
assessment report as recommended by the Board of Revision of Assessments are 
based upon the actual cost of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 8: The total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be 
payable in cash to the Finance Director of the City within thirty days after completion of 
this improvement, or, at the option of the property owner assessed, in five or ten annual 
installments with interest at the same rate as is borne by the bonds issued in anticipation 
of the collection of such assessments and installments thereof which have not been paid 
at the expiration of said thirty day period shall be certified by the Clerk of this 
Commission to the County Auditor to be placed by him on the tax duplicate and collected 
at the same time and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by 
law; 
 
 SEC. 9: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the passage of this ordinance to be published once in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City as required by law; 
 
 SEC. 10: The Clerk of this Commission is authorized and directed to keep 
said adjusted assessments on file in her office for so long as any of them remain unpaid; 
 
 SEC. 11: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the levy of the assessments herein provided for to be 
filed with the County Auditor within thirty days after passage of this ordinance; 
 
 SEC. 12: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of August 3, 2010  
 

   
 
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Special Assessment for Riverside Dr. Street Reconstruction    
  Ordinance No. 24-10 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Ordinance No. 24-10 determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the 
improvement of Riverside Drive street reconstruction. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Ordinance No. 24-10 determining to proceed with and levying 
assessments for the improvement of Riverside Drive street reconstruction. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Resolution No. R-52-09 was approved by City Commission on June 15, 2009 to begin the 
Riverside Drive reconstruction project.  In that resolution, it stated that once the project is 
completed, we must give each property owner 30 days to pay the invoice in full or the choice to 
assess the cost to their property taxes for five or ten years.   The project ended in January of 2010 
and the Final Amount letters and invoices were sent by certified mail to each property owner on 
January 15, 2010.  Each of these property owners had approximately 100 days to pay the invoice 
in full or inform us of their payment choice.  There were two properties that changed ownership 
recently and those new owners were given at least 30 days notice as well. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance No. 24-10 authorizing that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 

assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate. 

2) Approve Ordinance No. 24-10 authorizing that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 
assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate with changes to the amounts being assessed. 

3) Do not approve the Ordinance and not authorize that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 
assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate. 

 
 



 Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the property owners’ property 
taxes, at the property owner’s choice of 5 or 10 years. 
2)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the property owners’ property 
taxes, at the property owner’s choice of 5 or 10 years, with some changes to the amounts being 
assessed. 
3)  This alternative is not recommended as it will not allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the 
property owners’ property taxes. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  We will recoup the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project as shown on “Exhibit A.” 
2)  We will recoup some of the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project. 
3)  We will not recoup any of the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The Riverside Drive reconstruction project was a public improvement where new sidewalks were 
installed, combination curb and gutter, drive approaches, new storm sewer, water main removal 
and new water service installations, new fire hydrants, roadway excavation, curb ramp installation, 
installation of aggregate base and asphaltic concrete, pavement signing and striping, and tree 
removals.   
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
As per Section 71 of the City Charter, we are assessing these costs to the property taxes to be paid 
in five, or ten, annual installments.  The method of assessment is as per Charter Section 70, 
Paragraph (B), “In proportion to the benefits which may result from the improvement.” 
 
 
 
 
 















RESOLUTION NO. R-90-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A LABOR CONTRACT WITH THE  

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has negotiated a bargaining unit contract 
with the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc., and 
 
 WHEREAS, FOP/OLC voted upon and ratified the collective bargaining 
agreement on July 26, 2010 as attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said contract is just and reasonable and in the best interest of the 
City and its employees;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 SEC. 1: The bargaining unit contract between the City and the Fraternal 
Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. to be in effect from March 1, 2010 through 
February 28, 2013, inclusive is hereby approved, and the City Manager is hereby 
authorized to execute said contract on behalf of this Commission; 
 
 SEC 2:  This Resolution and the wages included will replace the wages of 
the bargaining unit employees listed in Schedule D, Chapter 33 of the Piqua Code; 
 
 SEC 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
            
     LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST:   ________________________ 
       REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 



















































































































                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-91-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION  
                         OF RICHARD K. GHERE AS A MEMBER OF THE 

        COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE  
 

 
WHEREAS, Richard K. Ghere was appointed to the Community Diversity 

Committee on July 20, 2009 by Resolution No. R-61-09; and 
 
WHEREAS, Richard K. Ghere submitted a letter of resignation to the 

Community Diversity Committee on Monday, July 27, 2010. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby accepts the resignation of Richard K. 
Ghere as a member of the Community Diversity Committee. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



C.    OTHER BUSINESS 
            AUGUST 3, 2010 
 

 Power Systems Update – Mr. Ed Krieger 
 

 Monthly Reports for June/July 2010 
 
 
 
 




